Page 1 of 68 Docld: 7E3327489 ACN :120 313 395

Australian Securities &

Investments Commission

Electronic Lodgement

Document No. 7E3327489

Lodgement date/time: 29-11-2010 15:41:21
Reference Id: 81381983

Form 388

Corporations Act 2001

294, 295, 298-300, 307, 308, 319, 321, 322
Corporations Regulations

Copy of financial statements and reports

Company details

Company name

TIBRA CAPITAL PTY LIMITED
ACN

120 313 395

Lodgement details

Registered agent number
846
Registered agent name

SATILL & MILLER SERVICES PTY.
LIMITED

Reason for lodgement of statement and reports

Dates on which financial
year ends

A large proprietary company that is not a disclosing entity

Financial year end date
30-06-2010

Details of large proprietary company

What is the consolidated revenue of the large proprietary company and the
entities that it controls?
147836000

What is the value of the consolidated gross assets of the large proprietary
company and the entities that it controls?
4034892000

How many employees are employed by the large proprietary company and
the entities that it controls?
252

How many members does the large proprietary company have?

ASIC Form 388 Ref 81381983

Page 1 of 3



Page 2 of 68 Docld: 7E3327489 ACN :120 313 395

Form 388 - Copy of financial statements and reports
TIBRA CAPITAL PTY LIMITED ACN 120 313 395

24

Auditor's report

Were the financial statements audited?

Yes
Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in
s3077?

No

Details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter
referred to in s3077?

No

Details of current auditor or auditors

t audit
Current auditor Date of appointment 31-07-2007

Name of auditor
KPMG

Address
10 SHELLEY STREET
SYDNEY NSW 2000

Certification

| certify that the attached documents are a true copy of the original reports
required to be lodged under section 319 of the Corporations Act 2001.
Yes

Signature

Select the capacity in which you are lodging the form
Agent

| certify that the information in this form is true and complete and that | am
lodging these reports as, or on behalf of, the company.
Yes

Authentication

This form has been authenticated by

Name SATILL & MILLER SERVICES PTY. LIMITED
This form has been submitted by

Name Kristy Heather COTTEE

Date 29-11-2010

For help or more information
Telephone 1300 300 630
Email info.enquiries @asic.gov.au
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Tibra Capital Proprietary Limited and its controlled
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ABN 72420313 195

For the year ended'sb June 2010
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. Tibra Capital Prop ietary Limited and its controlied
enities £o o aaknn Can .

ABN 72120313395

Pirectors' report

For the year ended 30 June 2010

The Directors present their report.on Tibra Capital Proprietary. Limited “the Company" and ifs controlled entities
'the Group"” for the year ended 30 Junis 2040,

1. General information . - .

Directors

The:Directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

Names Appointed

Dinesh Bhandari ' 21.June 2006 (Resigned 25 May 2010)
Timothy Berry 1 Jaruary 2009

Paul James 25 May 2010

_ ian"King' : 30 April-2008
Campbell N&fwsod " 1:Januany 2009

The Company secretary during the financial year and. at the time of signing the financial report is Melanie
Borden. .

Officers who were previously partriers-of the audit firm

No. persons ‘who were officers of thg Company: during the finansial year were: previously partners of the
current audit-firm,; KPMG, at a time whei KPMG undertook an audit of the: Company.

Principal activities:

The principal activities of the Group.during the financial yedr was frading in derivatives, foreign currency and
securities.
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T'b a Capital Proprietary Limited and its controlled
entities o
ABN 72120343 395

Directors' report

Forthe yearended 30 June.2010

2. Business roview

allenging .one for the global financial senvices sector. The continued
¥ £h global credit markets and slowing: sconomic growth have combined to
‘ nificant pressure on - angl Hormanee. and -capital posifions of @ large-number of
international: banks and'financial services orgarigati "heDirectors of the. Company .employed risk
managemerit contingency planning: during. the ‘pericd. of global financial sector instabllity to minimise the
Company's exposure 1o its currént business partners,

In this snvironment the Group has performed well, and the Group's robust financial position enables 1 to
maintain the momenturm behind its strategic priorities. The Group wilf continue to focus on delivering its
vision of strengthening its core business and. profit growth,

Duﬁngfthe pe'riod Tibra Trading Europe Limited (TTEL), a subsidiary of the Group, iransterred its cash desk
to its parent entity Tibra Trading Pty Limited. in addition Tibra Trading America (TTA) commenced trading in-

Operating results

The consolidiated profit of the Group after providing for income tax amounted to'$ 24,510 thousand (2009:
577,514 thousand).

Dividends paid or recommended

Dividends paid or declared by the Group to:members since the end of the previous financial year were:

2010 ordinary dividend paith.on-22 December 2009 $24,:410,228

The Company's:share option scheme

The following table sumniarises the share option activity for the year ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June
2009:

30 June 30-June

2010 2008
Oplions granted over unissued shares - 4,510,835
Options granted to Directors of the Company*
- Glenn Williamson - 397,977
- Chrigtian King - 703,206
-« Campbell Narwood - 884 492
Tolal** - 3,202,909

* Options have been granted io shareholdets of the Company.

** Glenn Williamson resigned as a Director on 4 Deceriber 2008,
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Tibra Capital Proprietary Limited and its controlled

eﬂtlt;es

- ABN 72 120 313 385

Directors' report

For the year.ended 30 June 2010

2

Business review (continued)

gen gra &d’
duly 2009,

Review of cperations

The Group continees to trade | the foliowing core products on a regular basis: securifies; exchange traded
options. aver major indices and-feading stocks; futires over major indices and leading stocks; over-the-
counter (OTC) equity.deriv: contracts in‘the wholesale market and foreign exchange contracts.

Thé Group trades on the Australian, Asian, European & American markets.

The Group's profit after tax-decreased from $77.514 millio# in the prior year 1o $24.510 million in the:current
year,

Indemnifying officers or auditors

No-lndemrﬁties

No indemnities have been given during or since the end of the financial yeair, for any person who i3 or has
been-an-officer or auditor.of the Graup.

Insurance pieiiiums

During the financial- year a-subsidiary paid premiums on behalf-of the Company in respect of insurance
contractsfor the year ended 30 June 2010 and since the financial year, the subsidiary has paid or agreed to
pay on behalf of the Company; premiums in reéspect of such insurance contracts for the year ending 30 June
2011, The Directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the
gremiums paid in respect of the Directors” and officers’ liability and legal expenses’ insurance cohtracts, as
such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the: contract:

Other items
Events subsequent to reporting date

Ne matters or circumstances have-arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or
may significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operalions or the state of affairs-of
the Group in fiiture financial years.
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T:bra_C""'pstaI F’ 'prletary Limited and its controfled

ABN 72120 3;1_3_ ?395
Directors® re;iért

Faor the year ended 30 June 2010’

4, Other items (contmued}

L Future developments

”he Group w ccntmue to pursue its-policy of i mcreasmg profi tabrhty durmg the next financial year.

-leely deveiopments in. the operations of the Group and the expected results of those operatlor!s in future
financial'years have not beenincluded in this report-as the inclusion: of such information is likely to result in
unreasonable préjudice to the Group,

Enwronmenta! regu!atmns

0552 whether there are any particular or significant environmental. regulahons thatapply
lined that'there are none.,

claration

The lead auditors independence declaration for the yesr ended 30 June 2010 has been received and can be
foutidion page 7 of the report..

Rounding of amounts.

The Group is. an-enlity to-which ASIC Class order 98/100 applies and, accordingly, amounts in the financial
statements and Directors' report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

DItSEAOL: oo bt A I T b 11(er o PO vy o SRRSO O
Beny. Chiistian Kihg

. .
Dated this ... Ao day of Novenber s
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Independent auditor’s réeport to the members of Tibra Capital ?repr:etary Limited
and it’s controllecl entities

Report on the financial réport

expianatm‘y notes 1 to. 31 and the dxrectors declamtmn of the Grou ising the:company
and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time duF the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

. - The dlre_ctors -of the:company are responmble for the preparation and fair presentalxon of the

.+, ~financial eport in‘accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian

- nfing Interpretations) a ¢ Cap rporations Act 2004, This responsibility includes

‘establishing and maintaining ! rélevant to the prcparauon and fair presentation of
'the fi nancxal‘rcpoﬁ that'1s e froim mate misstalemenl; her due to fraud orerror;

selectmg and applying apprcpnate accounting polmes, and making accounting estimates thatare:

reasonable’in the cifcumistances: In fiote: 1, the directors als sccordance with Australian.

Accounting Standard AASE 1(;)1 Presentation of Finarcial ragnty, that the financial report

of the: Group, comprising the financial statements and notes; complies: with: International

Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion-on the financial report based:on our audit, We
conducted our audit in:accordance with Australian Aunditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagenients: and-plar and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement.

Anaudif involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidense about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks-of material misstatement of'the financial report, whether
due to fraud.or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intermal control
relevant to-the entity’s preparation and fair presentation. of the financial report inorder te-design
audit procedures. that are-appropeiate in the circumstances, but not. forthe purpose of expressing
an opinicn on the effectiveness of the entity’s:intemal control. Ad:audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasongblénéss of accounting estimates

- made by'the directors, s well a3 evaluating the overall presentation-of the financial report.

KPMG, 2y Australian poftdership and a member firdyol the KPMG network
of independant cember frms atfilisted with KPMG tnernational Cooperative
TEPMG Internasional’; a Swiss entity.
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We perfored thie procedures 10:as5ess whuher inall matenal respects the ﬁnamml repert
piesents fairly, in‘accordance withithe Corporations Act. 2001 -and Australian Accounung
Standards (includi itg the Augtralian Accounting Intc,;prezatwns), a view which is consistent with
our understandmg of the Company's and the Group’s: Afinancial position and of: their
performance. ™+

believe that the aidit evidence w
S :bas:s for ourdndit: apm:on o

'ave abtained is sufficient and appropriateto provide a

Indepemlenca

In conduct,mg_our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the

o Aud:tors apmwn

" Inour opmmn

(a)the ﬁnancw% report of Tivra Capital Proprietary Limited:is in accordance with the
Corporations dct 2001, including;

()  giving atrueard fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position as
2t:30 June: 2010 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and:

(31} cotaplying with Adstfalian Accounting Standards (mcludmg the Australiain
Accounting Interpretationsy and the Corporations Regulations 2001

(b)the financial report also coimplies with Titétnational Financial Reporting Standards-as
disclosed-inniots 1.

Kom G

KPMG

Malcolm Ashcroft
Partier

Sydney
November 2010
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Leaa‘ Auditor’s Independence Declaratmn under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
To: thedirectors.of Tibra: Lapnal Proprzetary -L:mmted

o wcontravemxons of any apphcabic code of prefessmnal conduct in relatmn to thc
“audil,

Malcobm Asheroft
Partner

Sydney:

Naveriber 20610

S0

KPWIG; anAustralian partnarshipand s.member 1itm of the KPMG nétwork
of! mdependem mambar-firms affiliated with KPMEG Intesmationat-Conperative
PKPMEG Internationsly, a Swiss entity.
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Tibra Capstai Proprietary Limited and its controlled
“entities
ABN 72120 313 395

Directors' deciaration

The Dlrectors of T:bra Cap:tai Propnetary Limited declare that:

1. In-'the opmson of the dlrectors of Tibra-Capital Proprigtary Limited (the "Company"):

he financial statements and.notes, as set'out onpages 9:to 83, arein acccrda
~Act 2001, including:

with 1he}:Gq'r;p'o;ations

{i}: gnvmg a true and fair vxew of thei-Companys and the Group's financial positior-as at 3¢ June
2010 -and of th :

2(a), and

{c) there-.a‘re reasohable groundsto be!iéve that the Company will be -ableftb-.pay its debts-as and when they
become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

DIEEROT ... B emsenif eemivsssiensinsteminss
Christian'King
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Statements of financial position

30 June 2010

in thousands of §

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash.and cash-equivalents

Trading assets .
T'otél currentassets
Non-current assets
Trade:and otherreceivables
Investments in subsidiaties
Deferred {ax assets
intangible assets
Investments

Total won-current assets
TOTALASSETS
LIABILITIES

Current liabilitiey

Trade and other payables
Short-tarm provisions
Trading liabilities

Current tax liabilities
Cther financial liabilities

Total current lfabilities

Non-current liabilities
Tratle and ather payables:
Deferred taxliabilities

Total non-ctirrent liabilifies

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued capital
Reserves
Retained eamings

TOTAL EQUITY

priet}a?ry Limited and its controlled

Consglidated Company
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
4 7TATS 401304 407 27
5 333,643 36,065 34,969 12,966
20 17,227 11,420 8,626 85
12 3,478,323 2,769,427 . “
4,006,638 3218,208 43,702 13,078
5 3 28,794 7 28,674 "
24 - s 10,737 4,311
6 16,899 14,487 . -
20 3,403 2,693 28 .
7 7317 5,987 - .
604 694 . -
28,254 52,655 10,772 32,985
4,034,892 3270861 54,474 46,063
8 21,560 14,201 1,356 531
10 16,545 19,453 . .
12 2,903,026 2,546,927 - -
20 5,563 160 - -
9 947,789 545,909 . -
3,894.483 3,126,650 1,356 531
8 6. - 6 -
26 4,981 4,633 - -
4,987 4633 8 -
3,809470° 3131283 1,362 531
135,422 139,578 53,112 45,532
13, 14 44,453 44,428 44,453 44,428
14 (6,137) (1,856) . -
14 97,106 97,006 8859 1,103
135,422 139,578 53,112 45,531

The notes on pages 16 to 63'are an integral part of these financial statements
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Tibra Capital Props
entities
ABN 72:120°31

Stateinents 1 5 _pﬁéhensive.income

For the year ended 30 June 2010

In thousands of §
Trading-revenue

Dividend revenue -
Exchangefess

Gross profit

Otherincome -

Servicefees - - . -
Administrative costs
Depreciation and amoriisation
Sersonnel expenses

ancy costs

Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange
Loss o disposal of fixed assets
Loss en-disposal of invastrent

Results from operating activities
Interest reveériue

Interest expense

Net interest costs

Profit bafore income tax

Income tax (expense)/benafit
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income
{Loss)/gain on‘forelgn exchange
{Loss)/gain on hedge reserve

Other comprehensive in_c&me for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year

rietary Limited and its ¢

Consolidated

Company
“Note 2010 - 2009 2010 2003
18 166,533 211,141 N -
16 - Comoo . 52,198 20,123
TASE) T os8g T .
159,066 200,851 52,198 20,123
317 558 - .
(29,247) (28,217) -
{25,547) {444) - (334)
8.7 o (681) R -
18 3,048)°  {58,155) - -
(4,744) (2:552) -
1,319 44 . -
- (197) . -
(12) - . -
41,765 121,270 22,537 19,789
16 2,228 5,359 174 1,543
17 (13,777)  (21,466) {11 )
{11,548) _ (16,107) 763 1,537
30,216 105,163 23,300 21,326
(5,706)  (27.549) 8,666 (388)
24,510 77,514 31,966 20,938
372 - . .
{4,853} (1,284) - -
(4,281) (211,673 - -
20,229 76,230 - 31,966 20,938

The notes on pages 16 to 63 are an integral part of these financial statements

i0
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TibraC
entities
ABN 72120 313 395

Statem.e'ﬁ:ts_ _Qf;éhanges il-equity
For the year ended 30 June 2010

Retained - - Translation

apital Proprietary Limited and its controlled

Company

Foreign
Currency’ :
Hedge

S : Preference :
Inthousandsof § -.Shares - earnings - Reserve = Reserve Tofal -
Balance at 1 July 2009 w108 o - 45,531

- Total comprehensive income R

for the period
Profitor loss - - - - 31,968 - - 31,966
Total compreliensive income . L .

: d R e - - 31'95& o . 31 ,935
recarded:directly iii equity
Contributions by and

distributions to owners
Dividends: o equity holders 15 - - (24,410) - - {24,410)
Issue-of eidinary shares from

exercise of opticns 95 . - . - 95
Share-efurid:on overpaymant {70) - - - - {(79)
Tatal contributions by and ‘

distributions to twrers 25 - {24,410) - s {24,388}
Balance at 30 June 2010 14 44,453 - 5,659 - “ 53142

The notes on pages 15:10'63:arsan integral part-of these-finéncial statements

11
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Tibra Capital Proprietary Limited and its centrol!ed

entities
ABN 72 120 313395
Statements of changes in 2quity

Eor the year ended 30 June 2010

2008

for the period
Profit or loss

Cther comprehensive
incomme

Total comprehensive income
forthe period

Transactions with owners,
recorded directly In equity

Contributions by and
distributions fo cwners

Dividends to-equity holders 15

Preference share buyback - 6
March 2009

tssue of ordinary shares from
exercise-of oplions

Total contributions by and
distributions to-Owners

Changes:in-ownership
interests in subsidiaries

that do not resultina loss
of control

Total transactions with
owners

Balance at 30 Juns 2008 14

“The notes on pages 46to 63 are an integral part of these financial statements:

Note

Compal

Re‘taine&

Share  Preference hslation - Hedge:
Capital . Shares earnings . Resdrve  Reserve - Total
L18,480 12:800 1413 - - 32,373

- - 20,938 - - 20,938
- - 20,938 - - 20:938
- - (20,948} - - (20,948)
. (12,800) - - . (12,800)

25,968 . - - - 25,968

25,968 (12,800) . {20,948 - = (7.780)

25,968 (12.800) {20,948} - - (7.780)

44,428 - 1,103 - - 45531

12
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T:bra Capital Propnetary Limi ted and its controlled
-5 entities

| ABN 72120 313 395
Statements of changes in equi_iy :
For the year ended 30 June 2010

2010 Consolidated
Forsign
o . Currency
e. -Preference . Refained Translation Hedge o
In thousands of $ Note tal : earnings Reserve - Reserve -~ Total .. -
Balance at 1 Juiy 2009 - 97,006 11,8560 ~ 139,578
- - 24510 - = 24510
“Fareign currency gain an .
hedging - . . . (4,653) (4,653)
Foreign.curreticy franslation
differences - - - 372 - 372
Total other comprehensive
income - - - 372 (4,6563) _ (4,281)
Total comprehiensive income .
for the: period - - 24,510 372 (4,653} 20,229
Transactions with owners,
recarded directly in equity
Contributions by and
distributions to owners
Dividends ta equity holders 15 - - {24,410) - - {24,410)
Issue of ordinary shares from
exercise of options 55 - - - - 95
Share refund on overpayment (70) " - - - {70}

Total contributions by and ;
distributions to owners 25 : (24,410)

Chzangss in ownership
interests in subsidiaries
that-do not resultinaloss
of control

{24,385}

Total transactions with ]
owhers 25 - {24,410) “ - {24,385}

Balance at:30 June 2010 14 44,453 - 87,106 {1,4B4)  (4,653) 135,422

The notes on pages 16 to 63-are an integral part.of these financial statements -
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Tibra Caputa! Pmpr:etary Limited and its cantrolled
entities

ABN 72120313 385

Staternents of changes In eqhity

Foi the year ended 30 June 2010

2009 Consolidated
Foreign
Currency
: Share .Pref_e_ren'ce Retained - Translation Hadga-

In‘thousands:of $ _ Note: Capltal “Bhares : -earnings Reserve Reserve Tofal
Balance at 1 July 2008 18480 12,800 40,440 (89 - 71,131
Total comprehensive income
for the period. -

Proftt or foss. j. L - . 77,514 - - 77,514

*differences - “ “ - o {1,287)

Total cther comprehensive _

icome - - - (.287)y - (1.287)
Total comprehensive income:

for the period - - 77.514 {1,287) - 76,227

Transactions with owners,
tecorded directly in equity

Contributions by and

distributions: to-owners _
Dividends to-equity Holders 15 - - {20,948) - - {20,948)
Preference share buyback -6

March 2009 - {12,800) - - - (12,800)

[ssue of ordinary shares on
exercise of options 25 988 - - - - 25,968

Total-contributions by and
distributions to owners 28 068 {12.800) (20,848) - - {7,780}

Changes in ownership.
interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a foss

of control
Total'transactions with _ _ _
owners 25,968 (12:800) {20,948) - - {7,780}
Balance at 30 Jukie 2009 14 44428 . 97,006 (1,856) - 139578

The notes on pages 16 1o 63 are an-integral part of these financial statements
14
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ABN 72 120 313 395
Statemients of cédsh flows

Forthe year.ended 30 June 2610

- In‘thousands of § Note

: Cash Tlows from operatmg activittes
“:Gash from/(fo) trading actjvitiss -
" Payments to suppliers and employees
‘Dividends received
Inerest received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net: cash provided by (used m)
oparatmg activities. . - - 22

Cash flows from Invésting activities:
Acquisition of plant-and equipment
Dispcsal of investment
Acquisition of other investments
Acquisition of intangiblés
Interest from foans to wholly owned

subsidiaties

Netcashiprovided by {used in}
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares
Redemptich of preference shares

Loani{repayment} of funds to rélated
parties

Loan/(repayment} of funds to
shareholders

Dividends-paid by parent éntity
Loan of funds to third:party

Net cash provided by {used in)
financing activities

Netincrease {decreases) incash held

Cash at beginning of financial year

Effect of excliange rates on cash
holdings in‘foreigncurrencies

Cash at'end of financial ysar 4

Consolidated

2009

apital Proprietary Limited and its controlled

Company o

2010

"-"(212)

The notes on pages 16 to 63 are an integral part of these financial statements

2 {32,679)
- i . 52,198 36,158
2298 {8,359 8 1,543
{10,413) (20,135) o (6)
6,472) {43,007) 1274) (13,937)
{215,181) 136,193 19,752 23546
{6,095} (12,433 - .
7 - -
20 (B94) {6,426 (10)
(4,018) (4:583) - -
. - 758 -
{10,035} (17,710) {5,671} {10)
25 25,968 25 25,088
- {12:800) . (12,800
317 558 (18,862) 15,813
28,873 (15,315} 28,873 (15,314}
{24,310} (36,983} (24,410) (36,983)
873 - 873 -
5,678 (38:572) {13,501} (23,516}
{219,548) 79,911 80 20
401,304 322680 27 7
{4,281} (1,287} . -
177,478 401,304 107 27

15



Page 21 of 68 Docld: 7E3327489 ACN :120 313 395

Tibra Capltal Pmpr:etary Limited and its controlled
entities
ABN 72120 31;3 395

: .N:été:s'j.to the'%n'aﬁcial statements

Forthe period ended 30 Juhe 2010

1 Entity information

mprletary L|mited {the "Company™yis: & company dcmic ':Ausira[ia'. The Company's

registered office is located at Level 2, 222 Pitt Street, Sydney, NSW 2000, - '

The Companywas incorporated in Ausiralia on 21 June 2008. For detalis about the Company's
subsidiaries referto-note 24.

2 . Basis of preparation
{a} Stateiment of compliance

The finaricial report is & general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with
Australian - Aceounting Standards " (AASBSs} . (including Australlan -Interpretations) adopted by . the
Australian: Accounting Stendards Board (AASB) :and :the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated
financial statements ‘of the:company comprise the: Company-and its. subsidiaries (together referredto as
“the Group"). The finaricial report-of Tisra Capital Proprietary Limted-and its controlled ‘entities complies
with all International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} in their entirety.

The financial report covers Tibra Capital Proprietary Limited and-its controfled entities as an individual
esftity. Tibra. Capltal Proprietary Limited is & Gompany limited by shares; incorporated-and demiciled in
Australia,

The following is'a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Group in'the preparation
of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied; drfess otherwise stated.

(b} Presentation of financial statements
{iy Furictional and presentation currency

These financial statements-are presented in Australian dollars; which is the Group's functignal currency.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars,

(ii). Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with AASBs requires management to- make
judgements; estimates and ‘assumptions that: affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities; incoma and expenses, Actugt results may differ from these
estimates.

Critical. accounting judgements made in -applying the .Company's accounting policies inciude the
determination of the fair value of finangial instruments.

Estimiates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting
estimates are recognised-in the year in which the estimate is revised and'in any future years affected.
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Tibra Capltal Proprietary Limited and its controlled
entities
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Notes to the financial statements

For the period ended 30 June 2010

._applymg accduntlng pcﬁcues that have the mcst 5|gmf icant effect 3 the amount recogn:sed in the
- f nanclai statemients are descnbed in note 11 (Determination of fa ?

{iv}- In_clusibﬁ of'par_é‘n't: 'e'n:tity financial statements in financial reports

The Group has elected to apply Class: Order CO 10/654 whiich allows companies, registered schemes,
and-disclosing entities that présent consolidated financial statements to include parent entity financial
statements as part of their financial report under Chapter-2M of the Corporations. Act 2001. Therefore,

‘both the consclidated entity and the parent entity financial statements are presented for the period ended
39 June 2010,

ic) Basis of meafs‘gre ment

the revaluat!on of tradmg assets and trading liabilities for which the falr value basis of aceountmg has
been applied,

{d) Basis of consolidation

A-controlted entity is an entity which Tibra Capital Proprietary Limited and’ its-controlled entities hag the
power to control the financial and operating policies of so as ta obtain benefits from its activities.

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 24 to the finahicial statements, Ali controlled entities have
a 30 June financial year end.

All inter-company palances and fransactions between entities in the Group, including any unrealised
profits or losses, have been eliminaled on consclidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency wilh those policies applied by the Company.

Where controlled entities have entered or left the Group during the year, their operating results have
beer included/excluded from _the date controf was obtained. or-until the date control ceased.
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entities |
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Notes to the financial statements

For the period ended 30 June 2010

jnificant accounting policies

{a):Fareign currency translation
Transaction and.ba[ance‘s

Foreign currency transachons are: translated into functichal currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at’the date of the transactlon FOI’EIQFI currency mornetary items are-translaled at the yearend - exchange
(= 5 t historical costicontinue to-be carried af the exchange rate at the
ry iterns measured:at fair valué ars reported at the exchange rate at

iems are; recogmsed i the Statementy of
'onetary dems is the difference between
amomsed cost in the functional currency at'the beginnir -agjusted for effective.interest-and
payments during the year, and the amortised cost in: foreign’ currency ‘translated at the exchange rate at..
theend of the year,

Exchange differences aris;rig onihe translation of'non—monet'ary iterns.are recognised-directly in equity to
the -extent that the gain or loss i§: difectly-recognised in equity, ‘cthzrwise the exchange difference is
resoghised’in the statements of comprehensive income.

Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

The Company applies hedge accounting to foreign currency differances arising between the functional
currency of the foreign operation and the parent entity's functional currency (AUD), regardiess of whether
the net investment is held directly or the intermediate parent.

Foreign currency diffstences arising-on the retranslation of a financial liability des&gnated as ahedge of a
natinvestment.in a.foreign operation are recagnised in other somprehensive income to the extent that
the: hedge is-effective,-and are presented within-equity in the FCTR. To-the extent that the ‘hedge'is
ineffective; such-differences are recogmsed in profit-or loss, Whenthe hedged part of a:net investment.is-
disposed of, the relevant amount in the FCTR is fransferred to profit or'loss as part.of the profit or loss:
on disposal.

Group companies

The financial résults and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the
Group's presentation currency are translated as foliows:

s assets and liabilities are franslated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date;
+ jncomeand expenses-are franslated-at average exchange rates for the perisd; and

» retaingd earnings.are franslated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.
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| Tibra Capltai Proprleta d its contralled

For the peﬂod ended 30:June 2010

3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

- {a) For;e_ign_ currency translation. (continued)

Group"companies (continuecl) _

Exchange differences anslng on translatlon of foreign- operatlons are {ransferred-directly to the Groups
foreign:: currency translation: reserve: ‘in-the statements. ‘of fmancsal position. These d:ﬁefences are
recognised in the:statemeénts of comprehensive'i |ncome an the perio wh|ch the operaiaon is dlsposed

{by Comparatives

Where reqwred ccmparatwe f gu%fes have beeri adjusted fo conform to changes in presentation for the
Gils? AT

Re609n§tion an‘d ‘initial ineasureiment

Fitantiz |- instruments, . incarporating financial assets -and: finansial liabilities, are- recogmsed when the
entity becomes a'parly to-cantrattual provisions of the instruments, Trade date accounfing is adopted for
financial assets that are defivered-within timeframes ‘established by marketplace convention.

Financial instrumenits are initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs where the instrument is
not classified as at fairvalue through profit or joss. Transaction costs related to instruments classified as
at fair valug through profit or loss are expensed to profit-or loss immediately. Financial instruments are
classified and measured as set out below,

Amounts receivable from unsetled sales are recognised in trade and other receivables, and amounis
payable from unsettled purchases are recognised in other financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments, including hedge aceounting

Derivative positions consist of listed options and futures and over-the-counter (OTC) traded options and
futures, These are presented.in the statemient:of financial. position-as trading assets or trading liabilities,

Traded: derivative finandial instriments. are fecorded & fair value based on quicted market. prices or the
price generated by derivative pricing: modals where:no. active market:exists. Changes in fair value: are
reflected in profit. immedidtely ag they occer with. unrealised profits @nd losses being recorded in the
statements of camprehensive incorie, '

The Cempany holds derivative financial Instruments 1o, Hedge s foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if
the econamic characteristics and risky of the host contract and the embedded derivative are notclosely
related, 3 separate instrument-with the same. 16rins as ihe embeddsd derivative-would meet the
definition-of a derivative, and the combined Instrumentis riof measured at fair value through profit or loss
On initial designation of the hedge, the Company formally. documents the relationship between the
hedging instruments(s) dnd hedge item($), including the sk management objectives and strategy in
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Notes: to the financiaf ‘slateiments

Forthe: penod ended 3 J'une 2010

;poiicies (contmued)
{c) Financial mstrumeats {continued)

Derivative financial instrumerits, inctuding hedge accounting {continued)

undertaking - the hedge transaction, together with the methods that will be used to assess the
effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Gompany makes an agsessment, both at the inception of
the hedge relaticnship as well as on an ongomg basis, whetherthe hedging instrurents are expected to
be "highly effective” in offsetting the changes in the falr value -or cash flows of the respective hedged
items during the perbd for which thie-hédlge is designaled:and whather the actual results of each hiedge
are within a range of 80-125 percent,-For a cash flow hedge. of a forecast transaction, the fransaction
shiotld be fighily probable’to oceur and should pressnt an exposure. to:variations in cash ﬂuws that could
uItlmataIy affect: reported neti mcome o

Derivatives are recognised initially.at-fair velus; altributable transaction costs are recogriised in profit or
loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recagnition; derivatives are measured &t fair value and changes
therein are accounted for as described below,

Cash flow hedges

Changes:in the fair value of the derivative hedging. instrument desrgnated as a cash flow hedge:are
recognisad in dther comprehensive income to the extent that the. hedge is-effective, To the extent that
therhedge isineffective; changes infair value are recognised in profit &7 ipss.

If the hedglng |nstrument no onger meets the criteria for hedge account!ng. expsres orissold, terminated

cumulative gam or loss prevmusly recognlsed in cther camprehensivé income and presented in the
hedging reserve:in equity remains ‘there until the forecast transaction affects profit-or loss. When the
hedged #em- i5 a ron-financial asset, the amount recognised in other comprehensive income is
transferred 1o the tatfying amolnt-of the asset when-the asset is recagnised. If the:forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, ‘then the balance in other comprehensive income is recognised
immiediately in profit or loss. In ottier cases the amaount recognised in other comprehensive income is
transferred to profit or loss in'the same. period that the hedged e affects profit orloss.

Separable embedded derivatives _ _
Changes in the fair value of separable embedded defivatives are récognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Other non-trading derivatives
When a derivative-financlal instrument is not held for trading, and is not desngnated in a quatifying hedge
refationshig, all changes in its fair value are recognised immediately in-profit-or loss.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non—derwatwe ﬁnanc:ai in struments compnse :nvestments in equnty and debt secuntnes trade and cthier

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair-value: plﬂs For instraments not-ai:fair
value through profit or loss, any directly atiributable transaction costs, except’ as described below.
Subsequent tg initial racogmtion non-derivative financial instruments are measured-as described below.
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Notes to-the financial statements

For the period ended 30 June 2010

3 Significant ac‘cﬁunting policies {contindied)

A financial asset is-classified i this:category if acquired:-principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term or if so designated by management and: within the requirefients of AASB 7: Financial Instruments: |

‘Recogition and Measurernant. Derivatives -are also categorised’ ds :held for trading. Realised and
unrealised. gains and losges arising from changes. in the: fair value -of thése agsets are included in the-
statements of comprehensive income in the year in which they arige. '

Loans and'raceivabies

Luans an ) recewables -are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detenmnable payments that-are
an active markst and are stated at amortised cost using the éffective interest rate method,

Trading assetslliabilities

Leng-and: shert-positions in-finangial-instruments are tigld:by-the Group as part of its core-business. In

the ‘majority of cases, long and- short positions are taken as the primary economic hedge against a
derivative trade exscuted in the market.

Such financial assets:or financial abilities are recognised initially at fair value with fransaction ‘costs
taken to the statements of comprehensive income and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Al
sitbsequent gains: and Josses from changes in the fair value of these assets and liabiliies, together with

related dividends, are recogriised in the statements: of compréhensive: income within trading income as

they arise:. Interest income and expsnse are classified separately. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are recognised using trade date accouhting.

(d) Equity instruments
{i} Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are ciassifed as-equity. incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares.are recognised as a deducticn from equity; net of any related incorne tax beneéfit.

(1) Dividend policy

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the year in which they are déclared.
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Notes to the financial statements

Fer the period ended 30 June 2010

‘agcounting policies (continued).

(e) Employes benefits

Provision is-made forthe ‘Group's liability ‘for emiployee benefits arising from: services: rendered by
-employees to balance date. Emplovee benefits that are expected o he settlad within‘one year have been
‘meastured at the amounts expected to:be paid when the liahility -is -seftled, plus:related -on-costs.
Employes benefits payable later than one year have been measur

at present value. of the sstimated
.future cash outﬂows ‘tobe made for those benéfits.:

Ncn:' ccumulatlng non-monetary benefits; such as medical care, ‘housing,-cars and free or subsidised
goods nd: _semces are expensed based on the net marginal cost 1o the. Gompany as the ber:ef ts.are - -

' mount expecteéd-to be paid-under: 'shori term -cash bor:us or prof t-
shanng pians if the Company has a present legal or consfructive cbligation to pay this amount as-a.result
of past serwce prov:ded by the employee and the obfigation can be estimated reliably.

iy Defined co"n‘t‘ribulion ﬁeﬁn'sion funds

Obligations for contributions to.defined contribiition pension funds are recognised as an expense in profit
or{oss.in the period during which services:are renderéd by employees.

{f) Cash and cash-equivalents

For the pumoses of the statements of cash flows, cash.comptises cash on hand and demand deposits,
and- .cash equivalents ‘comprise highly liquid investments that are corvertible into cash with an
ingignificant risk of changes-in-value with original maturities of less than-three months. Bank. overdrafts
that are repayable on demand form an: integral parl ¢f the Company's cash management and are
incladied as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

{g) Plant-and equipment

Each -class of plant and equipment s carried at cost less, where apphoable, -any. accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impaiment losses.

Capitalisation

Property, plant-and equipment, including capitafised jeased assets, are stated at cost. Expenditures for
repairs and maintenance are charged to income as incurred. Additions and improvements are
capitalised. The cost and related accumulated depraciation on properly, plant and equipment scld or
atherwise disposed of are removed-from the accounts arid any gain or loss is reported as current year's
revenue or expense,
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Notes to the financiat statements.

Far-the period ended 30 June 2010

3 Sig nificant-@éeﬁuntin_gr olicies {conginyed)

(@) Plantand quiymenff{:’;ohﬁnued)

The deprecuable amount of all fixed assets mc!udmg buﬂdm nd capitalised leased  assets, but
excilding -freehold land, is depreciated on. a. straight-line. basis ‘over their useful lives 1o the Group
commencmg feom the tzme the asset |s held ready for use. Leaseghold lmprovemems are depremated

following methods and anhual rates:

; Method Rate
Leasehold:improvements Straight fine 5-33%
Office equipment, furniture-and fixtures Straight line 5-33%
Ofthier property, plant and equipment Straighit line 5-33%

{k} Impairmentof assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have.bsen impalred. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the assét's fair value less costs to sell
and value In use, is compared to the asset's carrying valus, Any excess of the asset's cariying value over
its recoverable amount is expensed to the statements: of cornprehensive income.

(I} Intangible assets.

Intangible’ assets: cénsist of licences and - capitalised development costs that-are aequired by the
Company,-and are stated in-the statements of fi nancial position at-cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the-estimated useful life & finite) and impairnient logses. Intangible assets are. not amortised
when their useful fives are assessed td be indefinite.. Any conclusion that the useful life on ah intangible-
assel is indefinite is. reviewed ‘annually to determine.whither ‘everits and tircumstances continue to
support the indefinite- useful life assessment for that.asset: If they do'tiot, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite-is-accounted for-prospectively from the date of change.

intangible assets include capitalised software developmerit costs. Development expenditure is
capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process i$ comimercially
faasible, futuré econcomic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to-and has sufficient resources
to compiete devéibpment and t&-use or sell the assel. The expenditure capitalised includes - the cost of
direét labour that is directly attributable to preparing the asset for its irténded use.-Cther development
expenditure-is-recogrised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the period-ended 30 June 2010

3 Significant accounting policies (continuad)

(i} Trade and other payables

Trade and other accounts payable-are recognised when the Company beéoﬁﬂ:ég_:bbliged to maks future
payments resulting from the purchase of goods and-services-and are stated atcost.

{k) Provisions

Provisions are. recogmsed when the Group has a present lagal or- constructwe obhgahon that-car be
estimated reliably,.and it is probable that an outlow of ‘economic benefits-will be required to setile the
- obligation. Prowvi are determined. by-discounting.the: expected future cash flows at-a pres
: ‘money and the risks specific to the

{1} :Obligations.under finance lease

The Group leases some of ity equipment. - All.major leases are reviswed by-the Group to determine.
whethier these: leases in effect represent the acquisition of an asset and the incurrence of a liability;
leases with such-charasteristics are recorded as the purchase of-an ‘agset by-the Group,

Operating leases are expensed on'a straight line basis.
{ii) Classification of leases

Leases are classifiad as capital or operating:legses. A [sase that transfers substantially alf of the benefits
and risks incidental to the ownership: of property Is classified as.a finance fease. At-the inception of the
{ease, anasset and-an obligation are recorded at an amount equal o the lesser of the-present value of
the minimum lease payments and the properly’s fair value at the beginning of the lease. Assets recorded
under finance leases are amortised on a siraightdine basie over the term of the lease that is the
estimated useful lives of the assets. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and rental
payments are expensed as incurred,

{m¥ Revenue
(i} Trading income

Income: from the purchase and sale of financial instrumenits. is recogmseci on execution of the
transaction. Incremenits and decrements in the market value.of ¢pen positions-in_financial instramerits
are recogmsed By tfadmg |ncome in ti';e statements of ccmprehenswe mcome in the fi nancnal year in

pu_;’chase price and the market value. on'the Iast tradlng day of the fi nanicial _year
{ii) Dividends

Dividends frem the trading of secufities are recognised as trading income as-they accrue. Dividends
received from subsidiaries are recagnised as income when they are declared,
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For the period ended 30 June 2010

3 Significant accou ntmg §30|I¢I9$ (contmued)

(i) Managementfees o

o Ma_nagement fees.are recelved for the provision of trading strategy and fund management services.
i{n) Interest income and expensss
(i) Interestincome

Interest income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interast incoms s recognised as it
accrues, using the effective interest methad,

i ;:'I_ntere'st exp_eé es

i ..‘pnse :nterest expense. on-borrewings: All borrowing costs are recoghised in profit
of loss using the effective interest fnethod,

(o} Ihcome taxes

Incometax-expense comprises current-and deferred tak, Income tax expense is recognlsed in profit-or
loss except-to the extent thatit relates to-items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised-in equity. Current tax-is:the expected tax payable onthe {axable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted af the reporting date, aind. any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years,

Deferred tax is recognised usmg the statemients of financial position method, -providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the followmg temparary
differences: the initial retognition of goodwill; theinflial recognition of @ssets or igbllitiesin a transaction
that is not a-business combinaticn and that affects neither accounting nor taxable prafit, and differences
relating to-investments in subsidiariés and jointly confrolied entities to the ‘extent that they probably will
nol.reverse'in the foreseeable future:

Deferted tax lé measured at the tax rafes that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is
redlised: or lishility is settied. Deferred tax'is credited in the statements of comprehensive income-éxeept
where it relates to items that may:be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
direclly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to-the exient that it is probable that future tax profits will be
available agamst which deductible temporary differences can be utﬂ':sed Deferred fax assets are
tax benefit will be realised. Additional income taxes that”a”nse frof the dist;;butjon of dividends are
recagnised at'the same time as the- liability to pay the rélated dividend i fet
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Notes to the fir_jénciai statements

For the period-endad 30 June 2010

3 Significant accounting policies: (continued)
(o} Income taxes (Contin ﬁed;,
{i} Tax consaolidation
The Company, and:jt's _who!iy-owned Australian resident enfities have formed:a tax-conschda%ed Group

“with effect ffom:4 JJuly: 2008 and. are therefore taxed as a single entity from that date The head entity
Group is Tibra Cap:tal Ply Limited.

 Current. income tax expenselmcome deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from
temporary. diferences ‘of the ‘members of the tax consclidated group are racognised in the separate
Aimangial; staétements of the members: e tex-consolidated group using the saparate taxpayer within

_Group’ approach by reference to the carrying amounts:of assets and liabilities inthe separate financial
statements of each entity and the'tax values applying under tax consolidation.

Any current tax Habilities. (or assets) arid deferred tax assets arsing from unused tax losses of the
subsidiaries is assumed by the ‘head.eniity in-the tax-consdlidated group and -are recognised-by the
Company. as amounts . payable/{recaivable} fo/{from) cther entities in the tax-consolidatéd Group ‘in
conjunction with -any tax funding amounts (refer below). Any difference between these-amounts is
recognised by the Company as an equity contributior or distribution:

(6} Nature.of tax fisnding arrangsments and tax sharing arrangements

The head-entity, in cunjunction wiitrgther members of the tax—conso!ndated greup1 has entered intoa tax
funding arrangementwhich sats:o .
respect of tax-amounts. The tax furiding arrangements Tequire payments torfrom:; the head entity equat to
the current tax liability/(asset) assumed by the'haad entity and any tax-loss defarred tax asset assumed
by the head entity, resulting in the head entity recogiising an infer-entity recelvable/(payable) squal in
amount to the tax ligbilify/(assef) assumed. The inter-enlity receivables/ (payables) are at call.

Condributions to fund the current tax liabilties.are payable as per the tax funding arrangement and reflect
the timing of the head entity's obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to the refevant tax
authorities,

The head entity in conjunction with other members of the tax consolidated group has also entered into a
tax.gharing agreement, The tax sharing agreement. provides for the- determinatiun of the allocation of
income tax liabilities between the entities should the head enlity default:on its tax payment obligations,.
No amounts have been recognised in the financial statemenits in resgect.of this-agreement-as payment
of any amounts under the tax sharing agreemment is-.considered remote.

{iil7) Taxation of Financial Arrangements (TOFA)

The Tax Laws Amsendment (Taxation of Financial Arrangements) Act 20089 and other technical
amendmerits (TOFA legislation) have been substantivély enacted. The TOFA legisiation provides a
framework- for the faxation.of financial arrangements, potentiaily bringing closer alignment between ax
and accounting cutcomes. The regime. does this by infroducing a number: of default and elective {ax-
timing metheds which canbe applied to take account of gains and losses from a financial arrangement.
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3

Significant accounting policies (continued)

{o) Inconie taxes {contin ued):

: 19 at - the: transition - date
arrangements into the new régim
assessable deductible over the next

ﬁnancual arrangements in place (pre»exzstlng arrangerne

to~apply reliance “on financial -reéports - tax-timing meiﬁods to. 'both new and  pre-existing
arrangements.

{p) Goods and:Services Tax (GST)

Revenue, expanses and assets are recognised net of the amourit of GST, except where the amount of
GST Incurred .is' not recaverable from the taxation authority. In these cireumstances the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.
Receivables and payablesin the stalemnents of financial position are shown inclusive of GST,

Cash flows are presented:in‘the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of
investing and financing-activities, which are disclosed as pperating cash flows,

{a} Mew standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been identified:as those
which may impact the entity in the year of initial application, They are available for early adoption at 30.
June 20'10:-but have not been applied in preparing this financiat report:

AASE 9 Fmanc:a! Instruments Includes requirements for the classification and measurement:of fi nancial
assets reszzl_tt_r_ag from the first part of Phase 1 of the project-to replace: AASB 139 Financial Instrumernits:
Recognition .and ‘Measurement, AASBE 8 will bacome mandatory for the: Company's 30 June 2014
finapcial siatements.; Retrospectiveé dpplication is generally required, ‘although there are exceptions,
particularly if the ertity adopts the standaid for the year ended 30-June 2012 or earlier. The Company has
not yet determined the potential effect of the standard.

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures (fevised December 2009} simplifies and clarifies the intended
meaning of -the definition of & related party and provides a partal exemption from the disclosure
requirements for government-related-entities. The amendments which will become mandatory for the
Company's 36 Jung 2012 financial statements, are notexpegted to have a significant impact on the
financial staterments,

AASB 20059- 5 Furthor- amendments to -Australian Accounting Standards arising from: the Annual
fmprwemen_ts Process affect various . AASBs resulting in-minor changes for presentation, disclosure,
racognition and meastrement purposes. The amendments, which become mandatory fer the Company's
30 June 2011 financial statements, are not expected to have @ significant impact on the financial
statements. ' -
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For the peiod ended 30 Junie 2010

3 Significant accounting po[icie_s (continuedy

'3.:'_."'(r) Roundi g of amounts

" The Group has epplied the relief avallable to- lt under ASIC Class Order 98180 and accordmgly, amounts
inthef nanctai report and Dlrectors report have been rounded off to the nearest $1,000,

4 Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated - Company
Inthousands: of $ 2010 2009 2010 2009
 Cashon hand o a3 - -
6,931 7.953 107 27
Shott-termi bank deposits. 1,100 1,145 -
Cash-on deposn with clearing
custedian 169,438 392,202 - -
177475 401,304 107 27

Gash on depesit with ¢learing custodian is: held with the Company's clearing house Fortis Bank Global
Clearing N.V.,

Reconciliation of cash

GConsolidated Company

Inthousands of $ 2010 2008 2040 2009
Cash-at the end of the financial year

as shown in the cash flow

statement is reconciled to items in

the staténients of financial position

asfollows:.
Cash:and €gsh equivalents 177,475 401,304 107 78

AT1,475 401,304 107 28
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For the period ended 30 June 2010

5 Tradeandother receivables

In thousands of $
CURRENT-

Trade rece1vab|es .
Unseltled’ trade 'cewables

Cash dividendr ewable on tradmg

positions . .
Prepayments: ...
Deposits
Other recelvables

Amounts recgivable from:
~wholly=owried subsidiaries
- gther rélated parties

~ shareholders.

Inthousands of-§
NON-CURRENT
Deposits

Other recelvables

Amounts receivable from:
- loans to sharehoelders

Consolidated: Coripany
2010 2009 2010 2009
5,881 1,141 2,950 16
321,068 30,41 - -
4199 2,048 . .
05 2,014 - -
: 472 - .
. 27 24 -
. - 31,095 12,751
8 43 - -
- o199 - 199
333,613 36:055 34,969 12,966
Gonsolidated Compary
2010 2009 2010 2009
a 33 . .
- 85 - -
- 28,676 7 28,674
3 28,794 7 28,674
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For the period esnd d'30 June 2010

6 Plant and-equipment:

Inthousands of $:
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture, fixture and fi ttangs
At cost -

_ Less accumuiated depremaﬂon

Total fumlture fixture: and fi ttmgs

Office equipment
Atcost

Less accumuleted depreciaton
Total office equipment

Leasehold:improvements
At cost

Less accumulated depreciation
Total leasehiold improvements

Total:plant.and eguipment

Censolidated

2010

588

2009

188
{29)

142 -

159

‘9,350

(2.:433)

6.917

11,054
{1,046}

7,836

(424)

10,008

7.471

16,899

14487
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For the period ended 30 June 2010

Consolidated

In th'qusandsof $ .

Currenit year

Balanice at the _
beginning-of year

Additions

Depregiaticn expense

Carryifig-amount at the
end of year

Prior year

Balance atthe
beginning of vear

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation expense

Foreign exchange
movements

Carrying amourt at the
end of year

ra Capital Proprietary Limited and its controlled

Furniture, - ST Foreign
fixtures and - Qffice Leasehold - exchange
fittings.  equipment improvements movements  Total
159 6,917 7,411 . 14,487
400 2,392 3,302 - 6,094
{113} {2,870) (700) - (3,683)
446 6,439 10,013 - 16,898
49 1,417 3,138 - 4,604
151 7,425 4,857 - 12,433
(29) - {169} - (198)
(12) {1,925) {415} {104) {2,458)
- - - 104 104
158 4,917 7411 - 14,487
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Notes to the 'f.in,a'n:t':i'al statements

Forthe period ended 30 June 2010

7 Intangible assets

Consolidated
o _ Computer
-ln_thousands of $ Licenses software Total
Current year '
Balance at the beginning of the year 97 5,890
‘Additions 174 3,844
Depreciation experise “ {2,688}
Carrying amount at the end of the ‘
year , 271 7,046
fance-at the beginning of the year 81 2,436 2517
Additions - 4,583 4,583
Depreciation expense - {1.129) {1,129)
Foreign exchange movements 16 - 16
Carrying amaunt at the end of the
year 97 5,890 5,887

Depreciation expense on computer software is included in the depreciation ling of the statements of
comprehensive income. On 27 March 2007 a subsidiary of the Group, Tibra Trading Hong Kdng - Limited,
acquired Stock and Futures Exchange of Hong Keng trading rights from & third party for HK$808 thousand.
This amount was capitalised as an intangible asset with an indefinite-life,

8 Trade and pther payables

Gonsolidated Company
An thousands of § 2010 2009 2010 2009
CURRENT
Trade payables 7,338 7477 " 84
GST 4,074 1271 - -
Accrued employee entitlements 1.465. 1.211 - -
‘Bundry payables end-acerued L
expenses 3,005 343 92 75
Cash dividend accrued on trading
positiohs 103 2,568 - -
Acerued interest 4,695 1,331 - -
Amount payable to:
- wholly-owned subsidiaries - - 384 372
-shareholders 7 - 7 -
- other B73 - a7 -
24,560 14,201 1,356 531
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Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 30 June 2010

-8, Trade and

“Inthousands of §
NON-CURRENT

Amount payable to:
- shareholders

8 - Gther financial Habilities

6115ands-of§f$-?_ s
URRENT

Settlement payables
Total

10 Provisions

Consolidated

in thousands of

Opening balance at 1
July2009

Provision used-during
the year

Addilional provisions
Balange-at 30 June 2618

Analysis of total provisions

in thousands of $
Current:provision

Consolidated "
2010 2009

6 - 6 -
8 . 6 -
Com pany B
2010 2909% -
547,789 ; .
247,789 . -
Emgployee
entitlements Other Total
19,453 - 16,453
{2,891} - {2,991}
. 83 83
16,462 83 16,5845
Consglidated Company
2010 2009. 2010 2009
16,545 19,463 - -
16,545 18,458 - -

Provisions for employee entitlements refate to amounts provided for employee bonuses af 30 June 2010,
These employee bonuses will be paid on 30 September-2010. Provisions for‘legal proceedings: ielate to
amounts provided for legal costs associated with the ongoing legal proceedings with-Optiver.
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Tibra Capital Proprietary Limited and its controlled
entities

_.éa_i_sf_s: 72120313.395

h:l:ot}es io t'heifinancji%i-;é;itements

Forthe period ended 30 June 2010

44 - Determination of fair values. .- .

A number of the Company's accounfing policies and. disclesurés require the determination of fair value, for
both financial:and non-financiat assets and liabilities. Fair valuss-have been determined for. measurement
andfor disclosure purposes basad on the following methods, Whiere applicable, further information about the

© - assumptions made in determining fair values are discloséd’irithe notes specific to that asset or liability.

ay !nveStmehtjs_:_ inequity a d debt securities

- The fair valtie of financial. sssets al fair value through profit or igé_s*-is determined by reference: fo their
vuoted bid-price. at-the: reporiing date. The fair valug of financial liabiiities at faif value through profit or
loss is determined by reference to their quoted ask price at the reperting date.

{b) Trade and other rac‘éi_#ab!és
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest:at the reporting date. Statements.of financial position value is
used as an approximation of fair value,

{c) Derivatives
The fair value of exchange traded confracts Is based-on:their closing fisted market price, if available. The
fair value. of other derivative positions such as options is determined using. option pricing moedels
including: Black - Scholes for European options and Binomial for American options, known market vaiues
and imphed markst rate parameters.

{d} Non-derivativefinancial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is talculated based on the present value of

future principal and interest cash flows, discounted-at the market rate of inlerest at the reporting date.
For finance leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference fo similar lease agreements.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the period ended 30 June 2010

12 Trading assets and |

o “:Consolidated
2010 . 2010 2009 2009

" Contractual Contractual Contractual Contractual
maturlty. " maturity maturity  maturity
L within.one - after one withiii-one. . afterone
in thousands of § 2010 year year . 2009 year _year
Long stocks and: - R LT E
posltions : .
Optlons : 1,881,156 1,798,923 182,233 1,042,630 924,655 117,975
Shares _ 1,249,153 1,249,153 - 1,662:385 1,662,385 -
Other securities 248014 248,014 - 64412 64412
Trading assets 3,478,323 2208 690 182,233 2.769427 2651452 117975
Short stocks and
positions
Options (1,940,450) (1,715,829) [224,521) (1,051,139} (900,578)  (150,561)
Shares (862,576) (862,578} - {1,495,788) (1.495,788} -
Trading liabilities (2,903,026) {2,678.505) {224,521) (2.546,927) (2.396,386) (150,561
Net.market value of
stocks and
positions 575297 617,585  (42,288) 222,500 255088 (32,686

Options aré valued uging-derivative pricing models. Shares are valued based on quoted market prices and
hiave been classified into thewithin one year bucket although they have:ng set maturity date:

During the year ended 30 June 2008 Tibra Trading Hong Kong Limited and Tibra Trading Europe. Limited
commenced. bysiness and entered into Dealing Loan Facility agreements with Fartis Bank Hong Kong
branch and Fortis Bank Global Clearing NV respectively. As a result, the Tibra Group's total credit from-the

Fortis group of AUD 1.5 biflion is divided amongst companies within the Tibra Group, and as at 30 June
2010.AUD 391 million of this facility was in ulilisation (2009; AUD 594 millien).

Under the Dealing Loan Facility, any amount paid by Fortis on the Group's behalf is treated:-as-an advance
and interest accrues daily on the balance of the advance. Amounts payable by Fortis to the Graup on
settlement are applied against the advance andin the event that the amount payable exceeds the advance,
interest is payable in favour of the Group. The loan is secured over the Groug's trading- assets and any
amounis receivable in relation thersto. In the svent of default by the Group, Fortis may combing,
consolidate, marge or apply any amount standing to the credit of the Group or any amount available to
Fortis, lowards satisfaction of the money due and payeble or which may become due and payable to Fortis.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the pertod ended 30-June 2010

_ .:1_13_ Tegued c

Share capital

qnsoii'd'at__e‘d Company

‘Ini thousands of $ 2009 2010 2009
Ordinary shares 44,428 44,453 44.:428
Total 44:428 A4.45% . 44.428

" The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time: to titne and are
_entitled to orie:vote per share at mestings of the Company. Al shares rank equally with regard to the

14

ts. Any-redemption of ordinary shares is sub approval by the Company.

|ts issued shares. As aij' 30 June
4,895,820); and 22,528,180 share

mpany h

ad;ﬁi};szﬂ;:BZD fully-paid shares on issus {200

‘options. granted over: unissuetl. shares (2009: 22,529,180, the comparative number of shares has been

revised'dueitoa share*sp]it;}.-?“l_?hesa options entitle the holder to buy sharés.in the Company at market value,
No value for the options is recegnised in thefinancial report ag options are at the money on‘issue date.

Share capital and resérves

{a)Reconciliation of movement in capital and reserves

Comipany

Foreign
Share Share  currency _
capital < capital- translation. Retained Total

in thousands of $ Ordinary Preference reserve sarnings  Equity
Balarics-at t July 2009 44,428 - . 1,103 45,531
tssue of ordinary stiares

on exercise of options:-

1 July 2009 85 - . - 95

Refund of overpayment
for ordinary shares + 28

October. 2009 (10 - 8 i (70}
Total recogrilsed income

and expense - - " 31,966 31,966
Dividends to shareholders - - - 424,410) (24,410}

T
]

Balance at 30 June 2010 44,453 8,859 83112
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14 Share capital and re’Sémes' (contia’ued)

{a} Reconc:hatton of movement in capitai and reserves {continued)

Company
Foreign
Share Share currency L
capital - -capital« translation: Retained Total
Ordinary Preference  reserve ' .earnings Equ ity
18460 ~ 12800 - 1,113 32,373
1 Juty 2008 . - - 17,535
|ssue of ordinary shares
from exercise on options )
=1 January 2009 8,433 . - - 8433
Preference share _
buyback - & March 2009 - £12,800) - - (12,800)
Total recognised income
and expense - - - 20,038 20,928
Dividends to-shareholders - - - {20,948) (20,948)
Bdlance at 30 June 2009 44,428 - - 1,103 45531
Consolidated
Foréign
Share Share  currency
capital - capital - translation Hedging Retained  Total
In thousands of § Ordinary Preference reserve  reserve earnings  Equity
Balarice at 1 July 2008 44,428 " {1,856) - 7,006 139,578
isste of ordinary shares:
on-exercige of options ~
1 July 2008 a5 - - - - 95
Refund of overpayment
for ordinary shares -~ 29
October 2009 {70) - . - - {70}
Total recognised income
and expense - . - “ 24510 24,510
Hedging reserve - - . {4,653) - {4,653)
Foreign currency
translation:reserve - - 372 - - 372
Dividends to shareholders . - - - _ {24,410} {24,410}
Balance at 30 June 2010 44,453 - C (1484) _ (4,653) 97,106 135,422

37



Page 43 of 68 Docld: 7E3327489 ACN :120 313 395

Tibra Capital Proprietary Limited and its controlled
entities
ABN 72120 313 395

Notes to the finay
For the period ended 30 June 2010

clal statements.

14, Share capitafl-i%n_d reserves (continued)

{a)Reconciliation of movement in capital and reserveé::"ﬁéhtinued)

Consulidated

Foreign
Share Share  currency -
‘capital - capital- translation Retained Total
Ordinaty Preference  reserve  -earnings Equily

Inthousandsiof § . .

“Balance at 1 18,460 12,800 (569) 40,440 71,131
Issue of ordinar _
on exercise of options -
T July2008" ' 17,535 - . - 17,835
Issue:of ordinary shares
on exercise of oplions -
1. January 2009 8.433 - - - 8,433
Preference share
buyback -6 March 2009 - (12,800) - - (12,800)
Total recognisad income ]
and expense - - {1,287) 77514 18227
Dividends:to shareholders - - - (20,948) (20,948)
Balance at 30 June 2009 44 428 - {1.856) 97,006 139,678

Foreign currency translation-reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising f!'om the
translation of the financial statements of foreign cperations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that
hedge the Company’s nel investment in a foreign subsidiary.

Hedging reserve

The hedging ressive comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in-the fair value:of cash
flow hedging instruments refated to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

3%
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S_h_até capital and share

premium

Inthousands of shares

Onissueat 1 July

1ssued .on exercise of gptions

1ssued on'share split - 17 April

2008 i o

Preference.share huyback -6
March 2008 -

On issue at 30 June - fully paid

15 Dividends

Dividends.and distributions paid

Inthousands of §

Final frariked ordinary dividend
of $0:378 per share paid on
22 December 2009

Intérim preference unfranked
dividend of $1,176.67 per
share paid on 22 September
2008 )

interest on interimi preference
unfranked dividend paid on 6
March 2009

Final unfranked ordinary
dividend of $0.08 per share
paid on 30 June 2008

Total

" Consolidated

Ordinary shares

Redeeinable preference shares

2008 2010 2009
10,022 - 12,800
2,958 - .
51,916 - .
. " {12,800)
64,806 - -
“Consolidated Company
2040 2008 2040 2009
24,410 a 24,410 -
- 15,061 - 15,081
- 825 - 825
- 5,062 - 5,062
_24410 20,848 24,410 20,948
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For the period ended 30 Juné 2010

16 Revenue

17

- Dividend révenus - wholly-owned
subsidiary o :

Total Revénue

i thousands of $

Interest revenue from:
wholly-owned subsidiaries
trading assets
baiiks
loans-to shareholders .
other interest

Total interest revenue

interest expense:

In thousands of §

Interest expense on:
trading liabilities
bank
shareholders loans
wholly-owned subsidiaries
other

Total

Consolidated _ ‘Company
2010, 2009 2010 2009
166,533 211,141 - -
317 558 = -
2,228 5,359 B 1,543
52,198 20,123
52498 21,666
Consolidated Company
2010 2009 2010 2008
“ - 766 685
2,087 4,305 - -
80 212 ] 15
3 843 3 843
43 - - -
2,228 5360 774 1,543
Consolidated Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
13,772 21,459 - -
1 - -
1 1
. - 10 -
3 - - -
13,777 21.456 1M
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18 Personnel.expense

b Consolidated Company
[n thousands of §. 2010 2009 2010 2009
Wages and: safaries 45,815 48,150 - -
Other associated personnel
expenses : 233 £.502 - -
Contributions to-defined contribution
- superanhuation and pension funds 510 4,503 - -
Total 53,048 58,155 . -
Provision for annual feave
Consolidated Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Provigion for anhual leave
Cpening balancé 812 356 - -
In¢reasef{decrease) in provisicn 151 456 - -
Closing balance 963 §12 - -
19 Income tax expense
(a) The components of tax expense comprise:
Consoclidated Company
inthousands of § 2010 200e 2010 2006
Currenttax 8,086 24,360 {8,638) 382
Originating and reversing _ o
temporary differences (330} 3,288 {28) &
5,706 27,649 {8,666) 388
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For the period ended 30 June 2010

18 Income-tax expenss (Continued)

{bYThe prim:ai:i-facie taix'-zéni;'ar:c'o_ﬂt from ordinary activities before income tax is reconciled to the

incoms tax as follows:

Consolidated Company
Inthousands of § 2009 2010, 2009
Profit-for the périod 77514 31 ,966 20,038
Incorme tax expense/ (benefit) 27,685 {8, _ 388
Profit-before income tax Dwg ) 21.328:
" Prima fa able '

profit:from:ordinary attivities

before income tax at 30% _

(2009::30%) 9,085 31,549 6,990 6,398

9,065 31,649 5,990 - 6,398

Add:
Taxeffect of:
- gther non-allowable items 135 -2_2'(__) 16 27
- ptherassessableitems 3,542 10,522 - -
- 12,742 42291 7,008 6,425
Less:
Tax effect of. _
- other non-assessable items {5,768) (10,014) {25) -
« fiflly franked dividends - - - : {6,037)
- non taxable dividends - - (15,635} -
- other deductible lems {1,718) {476} - -
-Under and cver provisions.in

prior periods 1_01' {2,508} {12) -
- tax rate-ditferential 349 (1,644} 5 .
Incometax attributable to

parent entity 5,706 27,649 {8,666) 388
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For the period ended 30 June 2010

20 Tax assets and:liabilities

in thousands.of $

CURRENT
Income tax

NON-CURRENT
Deferred tax liability comprises:

“Tax aflowances relating to

property, plant and equipment

(b) Assets

In thousands-of §

CURRENT
Income tax

NON-CURRENT

Deferred tax assels comprise:
Unrealised (gains)/osses
Provisions

Prior year underprovision

bra Capital Proprietary Limited and its controlled
entities

Consolidated Com pany
2010 2009 2010 2008
5,563 160 . .
5,563 160 - -
310 227 - -
539 307 - "
4,432 4089 - =
4,981 4633 - -
Consolidated Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
17,227 11,420 8,626 85
17,227 11,420 B,626 85
(270} {1,164) . -
1,598 1,755 28 -
2,075 2,102 - -
3,403 2,693 28 -
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For the period efi ed

20 ?‘ax_a:ss'efé' nd liabilities (continued)

(c) Reconciliations

(i) Gross movements
Consolidated

In thousands of $ 2010 2009
The everall movernent in the

defefredtax account Is as

follgws: :
Open’ihg'ib:alance (1,940) 1,349
{Debited)/credited to the

‘statemants of comprehensive

income 381 (3,289)

Company
2010 2008

Clesiig:balance {1,578) (1,940)

{ii) Deferred tax assets
‘Consolidated
in:thousands.of $ 2010 2p09

The movement in deferred tax
-assets for each temporary
difference during the year is
as follows:
Losses utilised
Opening balance - (1)
Charged/(credited) to the
statements of comprehensive
income - 1

Company
2010 2009

Unrealised.Forex gain
Opening balance - 4
(Credited)/charged to the

statemerits of comprehensive

income . {4)
Unrealised MTM losses on

positions
Opening balance (1,164) 944

(Creditedycharged to the
-statements of compréhensive

income 894 (2,108)
Closing balance (210 (1,164}
Provisions

44



Page 50 of 68 Docld: 7E3327489 ACN :120 313 395

Tibra Cap
‘entities

ABN 72 120 313 395

Notes to the financial statements

For the period ended 30 .June 2010

20 Taxassets and liabilities (continued)

Prior yesrs overs and unders
opéningbalance

Opening balance

Charged to statements of
comprehiensiveincome

Closing balance

{ifl).  Deferred tax liabilities

In thousands of $

The movement.in deferred tax
liabifities for each temporary-
difference-during the yearis
as follows:

Tax allowances relating to
property, plant and
equipment

Opening balance

Credited to the statemenits of
comprehensive income

Closing balance -

Prior years overs and unders

Opening balance

(Credited)/charged to the
statermnmants of comprehensive
income

‘Clesing balance

Unrealised MTM positions

-Opening balance

Charged/{credited) {o the
statements of comprehensive
income

‘LClosing balance

Consolidated

: Company
2010 2008 2010 2009
1,755 g . &
{158) 713 - (6)
1,597 4755 . .
2102 . - -
{28) 2102 - -
Consclidated. Company
2010 2009 2010 2008
(227} (119) - .

{83) (108) _ - -
{310} (227} - -
{307) 23 - -
{232 (330) . -
{539) £307) . -

{4,099} (544) . -

(3%) {3,555) - -

{4,132) {4,089) . -
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For the period ended 30 June 2010

21 Au'diturs'.réjéé;neraticp_:_ :

In thousands.of $

‘Remuneration of the auditor ¢f the
parent entity for: -

« Auditing of reviewing the financial

_report

22 Cash How infor

(a} Reconcitiatiern of cash flow from operating activities

In thousands of §
Net profit for the periad

Adjustments to recencile net incorne

to. cash flows
Change in securities at market
value

Interest received from wholly-
owned subsidiaires

Depreciation

Disposal of property, plant and
-equipment

Managerent fee income

Unrealised gains on foreign
exchange
Disposal of investment

Changeés in assety-and liabilities,
niet of the effects of purchase
znd disposal-of subsidiaries

Change in-dividends receivable
Change in trade and other
receivables
Change in trade payables and
accrials '

Ghange inincame taxes
payable/(receivable)

Consolidated Company _
2010 2008 2010 2069
293 340 78 81
38 . -
B8 - -
346, 386 78 61
Consolidated Company
2010 2000 2010 2009
24,510 77,514 34,966 20,938
82,041 62,078 - .
- - {755) -
6,37 3585 - -
- 197 - -
{317) (558) - -
(1,319) (44 . -
42 - “ -
144,298 142772 3,214 20,938
. . R 16,035
{1,087,282)  (500,728) (3,028) (7
764,465 499,324 10 139
(404) (18,647) - (8,913) {13,555)

46



Page 52 of 68 Docld: 7E3327489 ACN :120 313 395

Tib o
ent

5

ABN 72120313 385

Notes fo the financial statements

For the period ended 30 June 2010

. 22 Gash flow information (continued)

23

{aYReconciliation of cash flow from operating acti

In thousands of § -

Change.in d'e.fe_rre‘d.-taﬁce’s payabie

Change in provisions

Net cash from operating activities

Ré_lated party transactions

Total

Dividends recsived

Total

Interest pakd/{received) from
reélated parties:

Interest income from whally-owned
subsidiaries

Interest income from loans te
shareholders

Interest expense on shareholder
loans

Total

Loans-to/{from) related parties:
Loans from subsidiaries

L.oans to subsidiaries

Loans o cther related parties
Total

Loans toi{from) shareholders:
Shareholdgrs Toans,

Total

Note

18

16

16
18

17

o

vities {continued)

apital Proprietary Limited and its controlled

Consolidated Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
(362) 3289 {28} 6
(2,908) 10,183 - -
(215,183) 136,193 19,252 23,546
‘Consolidated Company
20407 2009 2010 2009
{317) {558) - -
(317) {558) -
- - (52,198} {20,123)
- - {52.198) (20,123)
. . {765) (585)
3 (843) (3) (843)
1 6 1 8
4 (837) {787} {1,522}
. - (384) (372)
. - 31,995 12,751
8 43 - .
g 43 31,611 12,379
- 28,6768 7 28,674
- 28,676 7 28,674
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23 ~Related party'tcansactigﬁs,(conti_nu_ed}_-
{a) No fixed terms of repayment

Loans to the Holding Company from subsidiaries of $384 thousand (in the prior year from the Holding
Company fo subsidiaries of $62 thousand) have no fixed terms of repayment and are repayable at call
and-do not bear interest. The lean to Tibra Trading Proprietary Limited of $29.239 thousand ($11,291
thousarid: In ‘the prier year) bears interést at the cash rate' as determined by the Reserve Bank of
-Austialia. The loan 16 Tibra Global Services Pty Limited of $2,756 thousand ($1,398 thousand in the
piivir year) bears interest at the cash rate as determined by the'Reserve Bank of Australia,

{b) Shareholders loans

Advances made 1o shareholders: during thie year of income are denominated in Australian Bollars and
interest beariiig-at the minifmum - interest rate specified under Division 7A of the ITAA 1930 (2008:
9.45%), for the purpose of distributing ordinary share-dividends. Interest is payable after the financial
year ended in which the advance was made. At.30 June 2010 the Company had shareholder advances
of nil.(2009: 528,676 thousandy,

{c)-Key-matiagement personnel

The key ‘management personnel are the Directors of the Gompany. The Directors perform services for
various other Group companies in addition tothis Company. The key managernent compensation for the
pericd paid by an associaled company, recharged to the Gompany, is as follows:

Consolidated Company
fnthousands of § 2010 2008 2010 2009
Short-term benefits 9,021 6,008 3,000 979
Post employment benafit 265 713 73 57
Total 8,286 8,721 3,073 1,036

The compensation structure for key:management personnel is determined based on a nuriber of
factors, including length of service, paiticular experience of the individual cencerned, and overall
performance of the Company and the Tibra Group. In addition to their salaries the Company also
contributes to a post employment defined contribuion pension fund on their behalf. The key
management personnel receive no compensation:in relation to the management of the:Company.
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. hare Option: Scherme ‘are: detefmined by the “Deed’ of ‘Grant of Cplions”
between the Compar é Optionholdék”The Stheme operates as follows: options are granted to
the Optionholder :td -subséfibe - during - the 'exercise period for. the .option shares. The Company
acknowledges receipt of the amount of $1-in consiterdtion for the grant of options. The exercise peried
commences on'the date ¢f the deed and ends on the. ar-of {i) 10 years afer the date of issue; and {f)
where the Optionholder ceases to be employed by a Group Cotnpany, and a buy-out everit-oscurs in
relation to the Optionholder.. The options are exercised af markel value, determined ds ‘the: sum of the
adjusted:net assét-value per share and the multiplied-earrings per share Options may not betransferred
excepi w;th priorwritten consent of the Company.

24 Group entities

Country of Percentage Percentage
incorporation owned owfied

Name 2010 2008
Parent entify:
Tibra Capital Proprietary Limited Australia
Subsidiaries of parent entity:
Tibra Trading Proprietary Limited Australia 100 100
Tibra Capital North Asia. Pty Limited (indirectly controlled) Australia 100 100
Tibra Global Services Ply Limited Australia 100 100
Tibra Global Services London Branch (UK} tinited Kingdom 100 Nil
Tibra Trading Europe Limited {indirectly controlled) United Kingdom 100 100
Tibra Equities Europelimited ‘Unifed Kingdom 100 il
Tibra Trading-Hong Kong Limited (indirectly controlled) Honig-Kong 100 100
Tibra lavestment Management Limited {formerly known

_as Tibra Capital Nanagement Pty Limited} Australia 100 100
Tibra Noith America Ply Limited Australia 100 100
Tibra Trading America LLC {indirectly controlled) USA 100 100
Tibra Netherlands Investmenis UA (indirectly controlied) Netheriands 100 100
Tibra Trading Netherlands BV (indirectly controlled) Netherlands 100 100
Tibra Assat Management Limited {indirecily controlled) Australia. il 85
Tibra Capital Singapore Private Limited (indirectly

santrofled) Singapare 100 100
Tibra Gapital Mauritius Limited {indirectly controlled) Mauritius 400 100
Tibra Trading Germany GmbH {indirectly. controlled) Germarny 100 100
Tibra Franice SAS (indirectly controlied) France 100 Ni
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24 Grou_p entities (continued}-

irectly. Field in’ subsidiaries by the Company amount t0:$10,737 thousand (2009: $4,311

s Py Limited was incorporated on-22- June 2006. Tibra Trading Pty Limited was
ncorpors inuary 2006 and commenced busingss:on 4 September 2008 : The-Company was
granted an Australian Financlal Services Licence on 3 July 2008, and this licence was varied with effect
from:5:Apel 200710 include foreigh cutrency dedling.

“Tibra Investment Management: Limited :was ‘granted-a: financial services licence: i Australia an 26
November 2007 and -commenced trading: on-this date.. Tibra Trading Eurcpe. Limited was granted a
financial séivicss Tisente in the Unitad Kingdom on'23May 2007 and cormmenced frading on 1 July 2007.
Tibra Trading Hong Kong Limited was granted. & financial services licence in. Hong Kong on. 256 June
2007:and commenced trading on'6-September 2007.

Tibra Netherlands Investments UA was formed in the Netherlands on 13 February 2008-and wholly-owns
Tibra: Trading Netherlands BV (a company. incorporated: on 25 February 2008), an unlicenced trading
company in the Netherlands, and Tibra Trading Germany GmibH:(a.company incorporated on 9-March
20089), an unlicenced trading company in Germany,

Tibra:Asset Management Limited was incorporated Tn Australia on 25 June 2008. Tibra Capital Singapore
Private Limifed was incorporatéd-ifv Singapore on ¢ Septernber 2008. Tibra Capital Mauritius Limited was
incorporated in Mauritius on 8 May 2009. Tibra North America Pty Limited was incorperated in Australia
on-19 May 2009, and Tibra Capital North Asia Pty Limited was incorporated in Australia on 23 June 2009,

Tibra Global Services London Branch was: incorporatéd on 31 December 2009 in the United Kingdom,
Tibra France SAS was incorporated in France on 5 March 2010 and commenced trading in May 2010,
Tibra Ecuities Europe Limited is an unlicensed trading. company incorporated in the United Kingdom on
14.June 2010.

{a) Deed of cross guarantee

Pursuant to ASIC :Class QOrder 88/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998, the whally-owned
subsidiaries:listed above are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit
and lodgement of financtal reports, and Directors’ report.

It is a Condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiariss enter into-a Deed of
Cross Guardntee. The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full
af any debt in the event of winding up of any of the subsidaires under certain provisions of the
Cérporations Act 2001 if a winding:up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Company wilt oniy be
liable i the event that after six months any creditor has not:been paid.in full. The subsidaries have also
given sirmitar qusrantees In the event that the. Company is wound up.

The: subsidiary subject 1o the Deed is Tibra Global Services Pty Limited, Tibra Global -Services Ply
Limited became a party.to the Déed.on 18 June 2008, by virtue of a Deged of Assumption.
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ntities {continued) -
{a) Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

A c_o‘n‘_soiidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of ﬁna'nt:_ial position,
. comprising :the Company. -and-controlled entities’ which ‘are ‘a parly to the Deed, after sliminating all
-tran-sagticns betwesn parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 30 _Jmp_eZO‘lO is set out as follows:

“Summiarised statement of comprehensive income and retaine

Consolidated Consolidated

2010 2009

In thousands of AUID

Profit before tax 44,831 41,885
income tax expensa (9,833) (6,174)
Profit after tax 34,998 35,711
Retained profits.at beginning of year 16,851 2,088
Totalrecognised income and expenss 35,711
Dividends to shareholders (20,948)
Retained profits at end of year 16,851

Statement of financial position
Consolidated Consolidated

2010 2009
in thousands of AUD
Assets
Cash and cash equivatents 2,738 3,861
Trade and other receivables 47,225 22,837
Current tax receivable 10,523 85
Total-current assels * 60,488 26,783
Trade and other receivables 1 30,758
Plantand equipment 10,768 3,833
Intangible assets - 5759
Investments 10,737 431
Deferred tex assets . 1,436 1,867
Total non-current assets 22,942 46,528
Totel assets 83,430 73,311
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 7217 1,394
Short-term provisions ‘4,038 5,548
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24

Group entities (continued)

\ .Eidated ‘Consclidated

2009
Current tax liabifities e 4,736
Total current fiabilities 11,256 - 11,676
Deferred tax liabilities 282 356
Total non-current liabilities 282 356
Total lishifties 11,538 12,032
- Nétassets - - . - 7,892 61279
-Equity
Share capitdl - 44,453 44,428
Retained earnings _ 27,438 16,851
Total equiity 11,892 61,279

25

Financial instriments

Financial risk exposures and management

The Group has exposure 1o 1he Ellowing risks from thsir use-of financial instruments:
market risk,

liquidity risk,

credit risk, and

operational risk.

e & @ 5

This note presénts. information about the Group's exposre to each of the above risks, their abjectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the management of eeipital, Further
quartitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment angd oversight of the risk
management framework, Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, -and to monitor risks and adherence fo limits, Risk
management policies and systems are reviewsd regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group's activities.

The Group, through training-and management standards and. pracedures, aims 1o develop a-disciplined and
sonstrustive: control environmeiit in which all employess: understand their wles. and-obligations. The
:responsnbel_i_ty forrisk contral and adherence. to the Grolp risk policy lies with each emiployee of the Group
and the independent risk manageris responsible for menitaring the risks.

Thie basic-pfinciple of the risk-management policy-is that the Group- will not take risks that it cannct define
and understand before it enters them, and for which it dees not-have defined management, measurement

-and control process in place.
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25 . Financial instruments {continued)

Independent risk management functions

To the extent warranted by the Group's activities, the process of measuring; monitoring ‘and-controlling risk

consistent with the established policies and procedures is'managed independeéntly of individuals conducting

trading activities, up through the senior-levels of the Group. An independeni system is in place for reporting
' _:_e_xposujré‘ o both senior-level managemem and to:the:Board-of Directors.

-.Highiy quahﬁe:dgstafﬁhg of ih" independent risk management functlons ensures a complete understanding
of the risks assotiated with-all of the Group's trading activities, Accordingly, compensation policies forthese
individuals-should be adaquate to attract and retain personnel qualified to assess these risks.

The risk management process

The risk exposures the Group assumes in'its: trading. activities is fully supported by -an-adequate capital
posmon The Group ensures that its capital- pcsnt:on is suff:clently strong to support all derivatives nsk3 ona

activitiés,

Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to'thé risk that a counterparty will- default-on its contractual obligations resulting in {financial
less fo.the Group. The Grotip minimises credit risk by adopting a policy-of only dealing with credit worthy
colnteiparties, and obtaining sufficient collateral where- appropriate, s a means of mitigating the risk of
financial joss frem defaults. Given the nature of the business, credi risk is limited due to counterparties
being banks backed by govérnment guarantees and high credit ratings assigned by international credit
ratings:agencies. The majority of the busingss is conducted through official exchanges.

Credit risks are aggregated across all sources of-credit rigk, counterparties' parent companies, as well as
across the Group. The only significant risk is the credit risk with the Group's primary clearing broker, Fortis,
which is owned by the:Dutch Governmerit. The value of the cash and mark-to-market. of exchange traded
derivatives held at-Foris is at risk to a Fortis default. The Directors and senior manggement constantly
monitor the creditworthiness of Fortis and the Group will reducie hoidings if conditions deteriorate, Forlis has
a.current credit rating of A-(2009:A).

The Group enters into OTC options contracts by using its clearing broker as an intetmediary. This creates
additional risk towards both the-OTC counterparty as well as the clearing bank, additionally the issuing bank
for sach warrant'is anciher source of creditrisk. The OTC edposure at-30 June 2010 was $128 million
(2008: $60.8 million),

Tre Group is also exposed t6 settlement risk which i$ the risk of logs due to the failure-of an entity te honour
its chligations to deliver cash, securitiss or other assels as. contractually agreed. This is primarily due to
largs professianal block trades where the counterparty is often unknown before execution, The Group’s risk
depariment maritors the. accumulated settlement risk o a given countefparty posi-trade and shiould these
levels becomaign h;gh the risk department will inform management,-For certain types of transactions: thie
Group mitigates: this risk by conducting settlements through a setflement/clearing agent to:gnsure that a
trade is'settied oniy‘when both parties have fulfilled their contractiial séitiement abligations:
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25 Financi'a_! instruments :{-con_ti'nued}

" The total expo_ reto.cradit nsk is represented by the amount that Forlis owes the Group at 30 Jung 2010 of
#1684 mllllon 55(2009 $392:2 m:[!non) Refer to note 4 for details. An-analysis of the credit quality of financial

Market risk

Market fisk is the risk that changes in market prices, suth as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange
rates and cradit spreads will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments,
The objective of market 1isk management is to manage and control risk exposures within acceptable
patameters, while optimising the-return on-risk.

Maiket risk is-measurad for ordinary market events as-well as catastrophic events, and is'managed through
intra-day and end of day position manitoring and risk reporting. Intra-day monitoring is performed by tools
trat caloulate real time positions and éxgosurss for each underying fraded. Tha:market risk report monitors
move-risk-and-risk ‘associated with Gregks, by sector, market -and underiymg Move Tisk is calculated: by.
aiggregation of positions:across the. wiitle Groupiand stress testing of both dowrigide and upside market
moves. All measures are-matched against pré-setlimits. In addition, the Group: uses a wide range of siress
tests to-model the financial impact of a varlety of exceptional market scenafios on individual trading
portfolios - and the Group's overall position. The stréss limits are applied at the:various aggregation levels.

For ordinary market events, limits-are set against Greeks {including vega assumptions). Greeks are
measured using an mdependent trading softwars vendor's system. These limits are checked at the various
aggregation levels (per symbol, per sector, and for the whole portfolio). For catastrophic events, the
methodology used is stress sconarios. Underlying prices are shocked up and down.a mibimum percentage
that is scaled wider in times of high volatility. Volatility is shocked up and down through a formuta which
takes - into: account the expiry of the option. This scenario testing demonstrated that the Group is not
‘materiglly exposed lo-changes in the undesiying market price. The Group has net disclosed further
information:on its specific exposures as itis deemed commercially sensitive.

The Gr_oup_'_s.-polic:y is to adhere to-market making principles and as such, positions or strategies deemed to
‘be speculative.in nature are not-pursued. The Group implements a:market neutral strategy on-any business
carried o by the Group outside market making. All transactions are. recorded automatically and
accumulated in market systerns’ enabling regular review of positions traded, underying risk measures
(ircluding delta_ gamina, theta and vega assumplions) and daily reconciliation to clearing house records,

‘Position. risk is mionitored on an 'as close o real time as possible basis and risk and position limits are
imposed ard strictly énforced. Risk fimits ‘and parameters are imposed-which are based on relative slock
prices, lquidity and wolatility levets, Large or unusual tradés are adtomatically reported for réview and
menitoring.
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25

M.a_. etrisk (continued)

cial instruments (cortir

Thie haircut is the ‘differe‘hcé:between;” es at whlch a market maker can buy and sell a security. An
analysis- of the haircut is performed on a:daily basis, therefore no dverage er minimum-or. maximum haircut
can be assessed.on assets held on-any specific day. Also, the Group. uses a wide: range of stress tests to
model the financial impact of a variety of exceptional market scenarios on individual. iradmg portfelios and
the Group’s averall position.

In addltwn. the Group. monitors the theoretical differéfice’which 1§ the difference in-the mark-to-market from
the xchangefcleanng broker versus dhe: Group's mark-to-market. model. - The Group:also uses the
g-requirements from its clearing brokers as an independent outside check against its internal risk
egms The R rnanager !laases wnth regulatory supervusmns to ensure that risk a!gcnthms are

( ffom the' pnor_ ar to-bétter reflect the risks faced by the Group

Intérest rate risk

The Group's investmerits in'fixed-rate debt securities and its fixed-rate biorrowings are exposed fo.a risk

of change in thair fair value due-te changes in interest rales. The Group's investments in variable-rate

debt securities-and its varigble-rate borrowmgs are.exposed to:a risk of change in-cash flows due to
chianges-in interest rates.. Investmerits in equity sécurities and short-term receivables-and payables are not
exposed to interest rate risk. Non-trading financidl asséts that are subject to interest rate risk comprise Cash
and Cash equivalents. Refer note 4. The effect of changes in interest rates on the parerit entity balances
subject to interest rate risk is not significant.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
At 30 June 2010, the effecl on the consclidated prefit and equity' of the Group as-a result of changes in

interast rates on-nonrading-interest bearing balarces, with all other variables remaining constant would be
as follows:

In thousdnds of $: _ 200 2009
Increase/(decrease}in profit

~increass of 200 basis points (1:825) 134
~Decrease of 200 basis paints 869 {66)
Increasei(decraase) in eguity .

- Increase of 200 basis points (1,9286) 134
- Becrease of 200 basis points 869 (66}

Foreign currency risk

The-Group is exposed to foreign currency risk-on trading instruments denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the Group. The currencies giving rise to this risk -are primarily United States
dollars, Euros, Hong Kong dollars; Singapore doliars, Swedish Krona, Korearl Won and Japanese Yen.
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Foreign.cu rrency ﬂsk (contmued)

The Group uses farward exchange contracls to hedge its: currency risk, most wsth a matunty of less than
one year from the reporting date. When necessary, forwatd éxchange contracts are rolled over at maturity.
The Group. hedges its foreign exchange investment in its sub ty, Tibra Trading ‘Europe Lid:(TTEL). The
forward contract is.the hedge The hedged fisk is the forelgn currency exposure arising from thé investment

entity ba!anées subjact to forelgh [ sk isnot mgmﬂcant

Foreign currency risk sensitivity-anialysis

At 30 June 2010, the effect on profit and eduity ‘as & result-of changes i non-trading foreign currency
balances, with all other variables remaining: constant would be as follows:

inthousands of § 2090 2008
Change in profit

-10% Increase in AUD against HKD (874) (500)
-10% Décreasein AUD against HKD 874 500
- 10% Increase’in AUD againsl EUR (361) (280)
-10% Decrease in AUD against EUR 381 280
- 10% Increase in AUR against USD 4ty nla

- 10% Decrease in AUD against USD 49 nfa
Change in equity

- 10% Increase in AUD against HKD (874} (500}
- 10% Decrease in AUD against HKD g§74 500
- 10% Increase in AUD against EUR (361) (280)
- 10% Decrease in AUD-against EUR 361 280
Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will :encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations from’ its financial
liabilities. Thie Group's approach to managing kquidity riskiis 1o ensure, as-faras'possible, that it will always
have. sufficient iquidity o meet'its liabilities wheh :due, under both normal-and-stressed condifions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The nor-trading liabiities are
repayable at'call or less than 30 days except for deferred: tax liabilities, For maturities on trading-assets and.
liabilities referio note 12,

The: daily liquidity risk is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing is conducted by the Group’s Dealing
Loan Facility provider, Fortis. The Group adjusts its portfclio of financial assets’if necessary to ensure that
the Group:maintains an acceptable liquidity ik profite dnd rmaintain its approved tiguidity risk profile with
Fortis. Refer to note 30 for further details of the facilily with Fortis.
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25 Finaneial instruments (continued)

L|q uld:ty risk (continuzad)

thI at:no-time- exceed ‘the -Group's net ||qu|dai|on value. The haircut, together with net Ilquldatlon value,
credit and cash’ usage, is stringently monitored fhrough & liquidity risk report. Internal haircut buffer is used
and breach of bufféris flagged to prevent potential violations.

Maturity analysis of all liab'ilitie$

Consolidated

Greater- © Greater
Less:than. than12 Lessthan than 12
12'moenths months- Total 12:months. months Total
Note 2010 20100  201¢ 2009 2009 2008
Inthousands.of §
Liabilities-
Trading liabilities 12 (2,903,028) - (2,903,026) (2,546,927) - (2,546,927)
Trade and other o
payables 8 (21,560} - (21,580}  {(14,201) - (14,201}
Current 1ax liabilities 20 (5,563} - {5,563) {180) - (160}
Short term provisions 10 {16,545) - (16,545).  (19,453) - (19,453}
Other financial liabilities g (947,789) - {947,789y (545,909) - (545;309)
Deferred tax liabilities 20 - (4,981} (4,981) - {4,633} (4,633)
Total liabilities {3,894,483)  (4,981) (3,899.464) (3,126,650) (4,633) (3,131,283)
COperational risk

Operational. risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a-wide:variety of causes-associated with the
-Group s: processes . personrel, technology and infrastructure, -and: from external-factors other than. credi,

risks' Such. as those arising from: legal and réqulatery requirements and generally
, f:corporate pehaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Group's operations. The
Group's-objective T to manage operational risk 30 as lo balance: the avoidanca of financial losses:and
damagé to the Group's reputation with overall cost effeclivengss ahd to ‘aveid control procedures that.
restrict inftitative-and creativity,
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The primary responsibifity for. the developrent and implermentation of controls to'address operalional risk is
assigned to -senior-managemerit. This'-;responsibility. s supported by the -development of overall Group
standards for the management of operational risk in the:following areas:

« . requirements for apprapriate segregation of dutles mcludmg the independent authorisation of
transactions,

requitements for the recenciliation and menitoring ef transact:ons

compliance withiregulatory and other legal requzrements

urrientation of contro|s and procedures

requ:rements
development

he reporting of operatlona! losses and proposed: remiedial action,
: _ontmgency plans,

training and:prefessional-development,

ethical and business standards, -and

risk: mitigatio; inclizding instiﬁ_é‘nce where this is effective,

. & & a @ .

Business dlsruptton caused. by emergency situations are managed through buginess sontinuity. planning, so
that the Group’is prepared to- minimise the. impact of -any-siich siiuations, Preventative measures such as
backup generators, falback servers and diligent data backup-are i place ‘to provide-the first: level of
ifisyrance:against systeni failure. Pravéntative auditing of systems and processes are also used to-identify
boftienecks and opportunity for improvement so that system:-operationality is ensured.

Management risk is the risk associated with the patential for management not providing clear and
transparent pdlicy, stralegy and ongoing-communication-and training for effective risk. management. The
Group's policy-fo miligate this risk is to-enforce trading limits and responsibilities in such a way as fo
encourage rasponsible informed trading behavior. It can-alsobe mitigated by having areliable infrastructure
arid work envirohimant through carefully selected third parties, and investing in carefully selected employees.

Settlement risk

The Group's activitizs may. give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions and trades, Seftlement
rigk is the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity 1o honour its-cbligations 1o defiver cash, securities or
other assets as contractually agreed. For certain types of transacticns the Group mitigates this risk by
conducting settlements through a settlement/cleating agent fo-ensure that a'trade is setfled only when both
parties have fuifilled their contractual settiement obligations.

Gompliance risk

Compliance risk 15 defined as both matérial loss and loss-of reputation -arising from non compliance with
laws, regulations, market rules and internal pdlicies and prosedures and codes of conduct. The Ccmpany
supparis and mainiains & positive approash - and culture with respect 1o camphance CompHance risk .is
managed ‘'on ‘&b sngoing basis through dociimenting compliance risks, implementing procedures, testing
precedures and reporting breaches of comphance risk standards. The Cornpany &nalyses these risks by
appraising -ihe cos's involved depgending: on the' size-of the-risk. The Company widely. emphasises these
rigks to create = consfant awareriess among:the embloyess..
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beang re_covered in fulf,

Inthousands of
Consolidated
Financial Assets

Fineneial assets at fair value held for trading

Loans. gnd-receivables - Trade and cther

Loans and' ec:ewables Trade and cther
i 5:(non-currant)

Trade and cth_er payables
Financial liabilities at fair value - trading
Cther financial liabilities

Total

In:thousands of $
Company
Financial Assets.

Loans and receivables - Trade-and other
receivables {current)

Loans and receivables ~ Trade and other
receivables (non-current)

Cash and-cash equivalents

Financlal Liabilitizs
Trade:and other-payables

Total

ancial #sgets listed In the table below has
|;:and to have & low probablhty ofdefault
the table below being called in, there is' a vy

lem _Cap:tal Prop.ﬂetary Limited and its controiled

d’éié‘nnined to be neither::

“in-theevent of any:of-
ood of the assets- -

2010 _
y Carrying 2019
Note' “value - Fairvalue

2009

Carrying 20-?9..
value  Fairvalue

12 3,478,323 3478323

5 333643 333613
5 31 3
4 177475 AT7475

2._'769,427 2,769,427

36,055 36,065
28,794 28,794
401,304 401,304

3,989,442 3,989,442

3,235:580 3,235,580

8 {21,560) (21,560)

(14,201}  (14,201)

12 (2,903,026) (2;903,028)(2,546,927) (2,546,927}

8 {947,789) {947,789)

{545,909) {545,909)

{3,872,375) (3,872,375)(3,107.037) (3,107,037

117,067 117,067 128543 128,543
2010 ‘ 2009
Carrying 2919 Carying 2009

Note:  value Fairvalue value Fairvalue
5 34,969 34,969 12,966 12,956
5 7 7 28,674 28,674
4 107 107 26 26
35,083 35083 41,666 41,666
8 (1,356}  (1,5356) (531) {531)
{1,356} {1,356} {531} (531)

33,727 33,727 41,138 41,135
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26

27

o Level 1:-quoted prices (unadjusted) in-active markets for identical asset
o TLevel2: inpits. other than quoted pnces mcluded w:thm E.evel 1 that! are 0

valiies and credit risk {continued)

(a) Falr value of financial instruments

Fair value hlerarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair vahie, by valuation method,
The different levals-have been defined as follows:

fiabilities,

etdata (unobservable

:-N__qte; : Le_vel 1 Level 2 Total

Consolidated

30 June 2010

Financial assets held for trading 12 3,323,108 158,214 3,478,323
Financial abilities held for trading 12 (2,875,885) {27:141) 2,803,028)
Total '447'1224 128,073 575,297
30 June 2009

Financial assets held for trading 12 2,640,341 129,086 2,769.427

Financial habilities held for trading 12 (2,478,679) (68,248) (2,546,927)

“Totat 161,662 60,838  222.500

Segment reporting

The Group's business activities are:managed cn a geograptical basis, however performance is monitored
globally. The Group trades in the following core products:-securities; exchange traded options over major
indicies. and leading stocks; futures. over major indicies and-leading stocks; cver-the-counter (STC} equity
derivatives contracts and foreign-exchange ‘coniracts. The Board reviews perfermance based on trading
revenue and net assets; trading revenue is from external parties. The'management information reviewad is
based on the same informaticn as the financial statements.

Revernue Net assets
in thousands of § 2010 1_26’!39 2010 2009
ALIASIA 82,041 52,048 116,977 104,953
Eurcpe 84,195 149,096 48,313 42,557
us 297 . 4,174 (87}
Consolidation agjustments - - (34,042) (7,845)
Total 166,533 211,141 135,422 139,578
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28 Capital management

on capital, which the Group defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders' equity,
excluding non-redeemable preferencs shares and nonscontroling interests. The. Board of Directors also
monilors 1he level of dividends f¢ ordirary shareholdeis. The Board seeks to optimise the capifal structure
to produce retums utilising low risk financing options. There were ne changes in the Group's approach to

capital'management during the year.

There are three levels of decision making in the capital management policy. Capital is allocated after
consideration of each individual factor. The Company's cash ianagément is based on:

+-“Regulatoty capital,

Regulafory capital:
Regulatary, miinimunt, capital is managet in the Group's subsidiaries. The Compariy acts as a market maker
an most-of the exchanges it trades’and can ‘only trade dftera license is granted for the specific-market.
Each marketfregilator has specific miniinum capital requirements for the-Ticenses, a requirement that
always needs 1o be'met. The Company monitors these on-a monthly basis.

it is a crucial requirement of maintaining market licenses that all minimum capital requirements are met. If
sufficient regulatory capital is ot maintained then trading may be suspended until adequate capital levels
-are restored,

Clearing house funding

As part of the license as & market maker, the Company as a non-cléaring mémber needs a clearing
agreement with & general clearing member in ortler to bie ablé to trade on an exchange as a market
parlicipant. As & result, the Comipany uses independent entities as clearing houses to clear all trades. The
clearing house is also the party that in most markets provides thé funding for the Company's trading
activities. For-each 1 of capital input they will provide a fixed amountas funding. The maximum funding per
market is set by the clearer and needs 1o be approved by the Credit Committee: of the external clearer; The
liquidity of the Company is managed on a daily basis by the risk department.

Availabie capital within the Company

The ultimate helding: company only invests in its subsidiaries through paid in capital. Al profity are
reinvested perthe Board's-diserefion. The Board mests monthly to-discuss strategy.
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29 Capital a'ﬁ'd_-lze_asing commitments
Operating fease commitments -
Nen-cancellable operating leases contracted fer but not capitalised in the financial statements

Consolidated

I thousands of § 2010 2009
Payable minimum lease paymerils

- notlater than 12 months. 6,036 3,701
~ between 12 months and 5 years 12,676 8,983
- greater than.5 years 7,085 5:371

25797 18,055

The-Graup leases information technology (IT):equipment urider. operating leases. The leases. typically run
fora penod of3 years, wilh an option to renew the lease after that date, The leases may be extended &t the
end of their termy al- market Value rental rates. The Group leases business:premises in Australia-and Burope
under operating leases. These leases run for a: period of between 1 mionth.and 9 yeais and may be
extended at thie and: of their term: at market valire réntal rates.

Buring the year ended 39 June 2010:$6.348 million was recoghised as-an expense in the statements of
comprehensive, income in respect. of operating leases (2009 $4.740 million). In determining lease
classification, the Company evaluated’ihe lease terms to determine whether the Group or the lessor held
substantialiy the entire risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset, On balance # was
judged that substantially ali the risks and rewards of the.equipment under the lease are with the lessor.
Accordingly, it was concluded that the leases are operating leases.

30 Confingent liabilities

Estimates of the patential financial effact of contingent lizbilities that may become payable:

Consolidated Company
In thousands of § 2010 2009 2010 2009
Contingent liabilities
Rental guarantee 1,730 1,730 - -
Forlis-rentai guarantee 1,185 1,188 - -
Credit card
Forlis credit card 109 109 - -
Total 3,024 3,024 . - -

The Fortis rental guasanites is aiamolnt guaranteed for the lease of office premises.in London, The liability
oniyfalls dug in the event of defailt by Tibra Trading Europe Limited.
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31. Events subsaquent to repotting date

:clrcumstances have ansen ssnce t?\e ‘erid of 1he ﬂnancaat year whlch ‘significantly
' of those operations or the state
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